
NOTICE OF A REGULAR MEETING 
 
Pursuant to Section 54954.2 of the Government Code of the State of California, a Regular 
meeting of the City of Tracy Planning Commission is hereby called for: 
 
Date/Time:  Wednesday, April 10, 2013 
   7:00 P.M. (or as soon thereafter as possible) 
 
Location:  City of Tracy Council Chambers 
   333 Civic Center Plaza 
  
Government Code Section 54954.3 states that every public meeting shall provide an opportunity 
for the public to address the Planning Commission on any item, before or during consideration 
of the item, however no action shall be taken on any item not on the agenda. 
 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 
CALL TO ORDER 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ROLL CALL 

MINUTES APPROVAL  

DIRECTOR’S REPORT REGARDING THIS AGENDA 
 

ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE - In accordance with Procedures for Preparation, Posting and 
Distribution of Agendas and the Conduct of Public Meetings, adopted by Resolution 2008-140, any item 
not on the agenda brought up by the public at a meeting, shall be automatically referred to staff.  If staff is 
not able to resolve the matter satisfactorily, the item shall be placed on an agenda within 30 days 

1. OLD BUSINESS 

2. NEW BUSINESS 

A. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AN 8-LOT TENTATIVE 
SUBDIVISION MAP ON A 1.2-ACRE PARCEL LOCATED AT THE SOUTH 
END OF ALHAMBRA AND GIBSON COURTS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF 
EIGHT SINGLE-FAMILY HOMES.  THE APPLICANT IS MACKAY AND 
SOMPS  AND OWNER IS STANDARD PACIFIC HOMES- APPLICATION 
NUMBER TSM11-0001 

B. PLANNING COMMISSION STUDY SESSION REGARDING THE DRAFT 
CORDES RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN  

3. ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE 

4. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

5.  ITEMS FROM THE COMMISSION 

6.  ADJOURNMENT 

April 4, 2013 
Posted date 
The City of Tracy complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act and makes all reasonable accommodations for the disabled to 
participate in public meetings.  Persons requiring assistance or auxiliary aids in order to participate should call City Hall (209-831-
6000), at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

Any materials distributed to the majority of the Planning Commission regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for 
public inspection in the Development and Engineering Services department located at 333 Civic Center Plaza during normal 
business hours.   



 

 

MINUTES 
TRACY CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 

FEBRUARY 27, 2013 
7:00 P.M. 

TRACY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
333 CIVIC CENTER PLAZA 

  
In accordance with Procedures for Preparation, Posting and Distribution of Agendas and the 
Conduct of Public Meetings, adopted by Resolution 2008-140 any item not on the agenda 
brought up by the public at a meeting, shall be automatically referred to staff. If staff is not able 
to resolve the matter satisfactorily, the member of the public may request a Planning 
Commission Member to sponsor the item for discussion at a future meeting. 
 

* * * * * 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  Chair Ransom called the meeting to order at 7:04 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Chair Ransom led the pledge of allegiance 
 
ROLL CALL:  Roll Call found Chair Ransom, Vice Chair Sangha, Commissioner Johnson, 
Commissioner Mitracos, and Commissioner Orcutt.  Also present were staff members Bill Dean 
Assistant Director Development Services, Bill Sartor, Assistant City Attorney, Jan Couturier 
Recording Secretary. 
 
MINUTES APPROVAL:   
Chair Ransom asked for approval of the April 11, 2012 Minutes.  Commissioner Johnson 
recommended approval as written, Jass Sangha seconded, all in favor, none opposed with 
Commissioner Orcutt abstaining. 
 
Chair Ransom asked for approval of the April 25, 2012 Minutes.  Commissioner Johnson 
recommended approval as written, Jass Sangha seconded, all in favor, none opposed with 
Commissioner Orcutt abstaining. 
 
Chair Ransom asked for approval of the May 9, 2012 Minutes.  Commissioner Johnson 
recommended approval as written, Jass Sangha seconded, all in favor, none opposed with 
Commissioner Orcutt abstaining. 
 
Chair Ransom asked for approval of the August 22, 2012 Minutes.  Commissioner Johnson 
recommended approval as written, Jass Sangha seconded, all in favor, none opposed with 
Commissioner Orcutt abstaining. 
 
Chair Ransom asked for approval of the November 14, 2012 Minutes.  Commissioner Johnson 
recommended approval as written, Jass Sangha seconded, all in favor, none opposed with 
Commissioner Orcutt abstaining. 
 
Chair Ransom asked for approval of the December 19, 2012 Minutes.   
 
Commissioner Mitracos commented about the verbatim transcript which had been discussed at 
the January 23rd meeting.  He added that this revision of the December 19, 2012 minutes was a 
better representation, but felt that he would have to abstain from approving them, referencing 
both the nature of the content of the meeting and comments from Mr. Jarvis which he felt were 
not properly represented in the revised minutes.   
 



Planning Commission Minutes 
February 27, 2013  
Page 2 
 

 

Chair Ransom indicated she felt the revised minutes were much improved and that as summary 
minutes she indicated she felt the key issues were identified.  She added the fact that a 
transcript does exist as a contingency.   
 
Commissioner Mitracos was specifically concerned about Mr Jarvis’s statements made relative 
to the pending lawsuit and legal fees which he indicated were not mentioned.  He too, referred 
to the recording of the session as an alternative source.   
 
Commissioner Johnson asked about the timeframe for keeping records of the minutes.  Bill 
Sartor, Assistant City Attorney advised the minutes are kept forever.  There was a further 
question about the verbatim transcript of the December 19, 2012 meeting as well as the length 
of time recordings would be kept.  Mr. Sartor advised there was a standard of three years after it 
is no longer needed and advised of the process required before anything can be destroyed.  Mr. 
Sartor said that the City of Tracy is moving toward electronic storage which allows for increased 
capacity.  There was a general discussion about how long documents are kept.   
 
Chair Ransom asked if there was a general standard such as the three years mentioned.  Mr. 
Sartor indicated that the government standard is two years, but the Tracy City Council 
recommended three years; which was adopted.  That time begins after a document is no longer 
needed.   
 
Ransom asked if there were any further questions.  Commissioner Johnson suggested that with 
although the December 19 meeting was over four hours; he felt that the most important issues 
were covered in the minutes.  Commissioner Johnson recommended approval as written, Jass 
Sangha seconded, all in favor, none opposed with Commissioners Mitracos and Orcutt 
abstaining. 
 
Chair Ransom asked for approval of the January 23, 2013 Minutes.  Commissioner Mitracos 
mentioned that he did not recall saying the second sentence at the top of page five and made a 
motion that the minutes be approved with the recommendation that the second sentence at the 
top of page five be stricken.   It was seconded by Vice Chair Sangha, all in favor, none opposed 
with Joseph Orcutt abstaining. 
 
Chair Ransom thanked the Planning Division for getting the minutes caught up to date. 
 
Chair Ransom asked if there was a Directors Report.  
 
DIRECTOR’S REPORT REGARDING THIS AGENDA:  Mr. Dean reviewed the process of the 
Planning Department staff preparing the overdue minutes and that staff spent quite a bit of time 
auditing and reviewing all minutes to get everything up to date.   
 
Mr. Dean welcomed Commissioner Orcutt to the Planning Commission.   
 
ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE:  None 
 
OLD BUSINESS:  None 
 
NEW BUSINESS:  None 
 
ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE:  None 
 



Planning Commission Minutes 
February 27, 2013  
Page 3 
 

 

DIRECTORS REPORT: 
Mr. Dean updated the Commission on upcoming projects.  He advised that the Cordiss Ranch 
project should be coming in the spring and an EIR will be forth coming in the next few weeks.  
He invited the Commission to spend some time during the public review period to study the 
project and engage in any public forums. He further mentioned the Tracy Hills project, Kagehiro 
Phase III, Tiburon Village and other residential and apartment complex projects.  He advised 
that the residential market has become very active.   
 
Commissioner Mitracos asked if Tracy Hills project would be happening this fall.  Mr. Dean said 
that the environmental work would come this summer. 
 
Commissioner Johnson asked about the North East Specific Plan.  Mr. Dean indicated that 
Amazon had created a great deal of buzz with various trade shows and suggested everybody is 
becoming aware of what is going on in Tracy right now. 
 
Commissioner Johnson asked about Caltrans or any road improvements timeframes and Mr. 
Dean indicated that would be down the road.  
 
ITEMS FROM THE COMMISSION 
Chair Ransom introduced Commissioner Orcutt and asked that he give a brief biography. 
 
Commissioner Orcutt provided the Commission with information about himself, his family and 
his community involvement.  He indicated that he looked forward to serving on the Planning 
Commission. 
 
Chair Ransom mentioned the Planning Commission Journal and an interesting article about 
being a Planning Commissioner. 
 
Chair Ransom asked why the Planning Commissions meetings were not televised.  Mr. Dean 
indicated that council had decided not to have them televised. 
 
Chair Ransom then asked if it might be helpful to have them publicized as another means to 
reach the public.  Mr. Dean suggested that the present system of public outreach including 
neighborhood meetings was effective.  He also advised that there would likely be a cost issue to 
have the meetings televised.  He added that public outreach efforts are more tried and true 
methods and that the Commissioners could be of assistance in that area.  Commissioner 
Mitracos said that he felt public meetings worked well. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Chair Ransom requested a motion to adjourn.  Commissioner Johnson so moved, Vice Chair 
Sangha seconded; all in favor, none opposed. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:38 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________  _______________________________ 
CHAIR      STAFF LIAISON 
 
 



April 10, 2013 
AGENDA ITEM 2 A 

 
 

REQUEST 
 

PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AN 8-LOT TENTATIVE 
SUBDIVISION MAP ON A 1.2-ACRE PARCEL LOCATED AT THE SOUTH END OF 
ALHAMBRA AND GIBSON COURTS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF EIGHT 
SINGLE-FAMILY HOMES.  THE APPLICANT IS MACKAY AND SOMPS  AND 
OWNER IS STANDARD PACIFIC HOMES- APPLICATION NUMBER TSM11-0001 

 
BACKGROUND 

 
Site and Project Area Description 
 
The subject property is located at the southern end of two cul-de-sacs within the 
Muirfield 7 subdivision, on Alhambra and Gibson Courts.  The project site is also west of 
Corral Hollow Road, on the north side of Starflower Drive (Attachment A).  The project 
area is 1.2 acres, to be subdivided for the construction of eight single-family homes, 
herein called the project site.  The project site, was annexed to the City in 1997.   
 
The zoning designation of the project site as well as the surrounding properties is Low 
Density Residential (LDR), with a General Plan designation of Residential Low, allowing 
for 2.1 to 5.8 dwelling units per gross acre.   

 
DISCUSSION 
 

Subdivision 
 
The proposal is to divide the property into eight lots in order to develop eight detached 
single-family homes on approximately 1.2 acres (Attachment B). The proposed lot sizes 
range from 6,235 to 7,043 square feet, which is in compliance with the minimum 5,600-
square foot lot size that is required on properties within the LDR zone.  The subdivision 
design includes four lots each at the end of Alhambra and Gibson Courts, consistent 
with the existing adjacent residential lots already existing on those streets.  When the 
previous phase of this subdivision (Muirfield 7) was approved and constructed, these lots 
were not mapped at that time, due to a lack of infrastructure capacity to serve additional 
houses at the time.  However, with the adjacent construction of Alhambra and Gibson 
Courts, these eight lots were improved with all of the road, sidewalk, water, sewer, etc. 
connections stubbed to the site, as though they were “finished” lots.   
 
Per Tracy Municipal Code Section 12.16.070, the Planning Commission has approval 
authority for a Tentative Subdivision Map, rather than making a recommendation for City 
Council action, as is required for Vesting Tentative Subdivision Maps.  
 
Access 
 
There is one existing main access point for the overall subdivision, located on at Corral 
Hollow and Starflower, which serves as the main access point.  There are additional 



Agenda Item 2-- 
April 10, 2013 
Page 2 
 

streets that connect to the site from other directions, such as Dove Drive, which 
connects with Sycamore Parkway to the east.  
 
Building Setbacks, Development Standards 
 
The minimum building setbacks are to be consistent with the standards of the LDR zone, 
which include front yard setbacks of 15 feet from the sidewalk, side yard setbacks of 10 
feet and four feet to the property lines (maintaining 14 feet between buildings) and rear 
yard setbacks at a minimum of 10 feet, with a 15-foot average.  These building setbacks 
are the same as those of the surrounding houses within both the adjacent Muirfield 7 
and Eastgate subdivisions.   
 
The proposed maximum building height within the LDR zone is 2 ½ stories or is 35 feet 
(whichever is less), which is consistent with the zoning regulations of all of the adjacent 
single-family homes also within the LDR zone. 
 
Because this project is proposed as a Tentative Subdivision Map (not a Vesting Map) 
and is within the LDR zone, the development of single-family homes on those lots is 
exempt from the requirement for Development (architectural) Review.  The proposed 
construction documents will be reviewed by staff at the time of building permit 
applications for compliance with the applicable Uniform and California Building Codes. 
 
RGAs 
 
The project will require eight RGAs for the construction of the eight proposed residential 
units.  The project will be eligible to apply for and receive RGAs per the regulations set 
forth in the Growth Management Ordinance and Growth Management Ordinance 
Guidelines after a Tentative Subdivision Map is approved.  The RGAs will be required 
prior to the issuance of any building permits.   
 
Schools 
 
The Tracy Joint Unified School District has determined that the project does not need to 
dedicate property for a school site within the subdivision.  However, in order to mitigate 
the proposed developments’ impacts on school facilities, the School District and the 
developer executed an MOU that caused the property to participate in a Community 
Facilities District for the payment of school fees mitigating the project’s impacts on the 
local school system.   
 
Parks 
 
Parks are required to be established within residential neighborhoods to serve the 
residents of the homes that are established in Tracy.  In order to meet the need for park 
land, projects are either required to build their own park, or pay park in-lieu fees.  Since 
the minimum park size within the City is typically required to be two acres, this project 
will pay the park in-lieu fees as established.  
 
Environmental Document 

 



Agenda Item 2-- 
April 10, 2013 
Page 3 
 

The project is consistent with the Negative Declaration approved by the City Council for 
the Kagehiro Annexation.  Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15162, no additional 
environmental documentation is required, as no significant changes have occurred to the 
project or the environment after the approval of the Negative Declaration.  An analysis of 
the project shows that there will be no significant on or off-site impacts as a result of this 
particular project which were not already discussed in the Kagehiro Mitigated Negative 
Declaration.  There is also no evidence of any significant impacts to occur off-site as a 
result of the project, as traffic, air quality, land use and other potential cumulative 
impacts have already been considered within the original environmental documentation.  
No new evidence of potentially significant effects has been identified as a result of this 
project. 
  
Public Resources Code section 21083.3 and its parallel Guidelines provision, section 
15183, provide for streamlined environmental review for projects consistent with the 
development densities established by existing zoning, general plan, or community plan 
policies for which an environmental impact report (“EIR”) was certified.  Such projects 
require no further environmental review except as might be necessary to examine 
whether there are project-specific significant effects that are peculiar to the project or its 
site.  If an impact is not peculiar to the parcel or to the project, has been addressed as a 
significant impact in the prior EIR, or can be substantially mitigated by the imposition of 
uniformly applied development policies or standards, then an additional EIR need not be 
prepared for the project solely on the basis of that impact. 
 
On February 1, 2011, the City adopted a new General Plan and certified the associated 
General Plan EIR (SCH# 2008092006).   
 
The General Plan land use designation for the Project site is Residential Low.  The 
development density of the project is consistent with the Residential Low land use 
designation. 
 
Staff has examined the environmental effects of the project and has determined that no 
further review is necessary because there are no: 
 

(a) environmental effects that are peculiar to the project or the parcel 
on which the project would be located.  The project is a phase of an 
existing neighborhood that is consistent with the City’s General Plan and 
Zoning.; 
 
(b) environmental effects that were not analyzed as significant effects 
in the General Plan EIR.  This project is within the development density 
contemplated in the general Plan EIR and does not include unique 
development features; 
 
(c) potentially significant off-site impacts and cumulative impacts 
which were not discussed in the General Plan EIR.  This project is 
consistent with all the assumptions of the General Plan EIR; or 
 
(d) previously identified significant effects in the General Plan EIR 
which, as a result of substantial new information which was not known at 



Agenda Item 2-- 
April 10, 2013 
Page 4 
 

the time the EIR was certified, is determined to have a more severe 
adverse impact than discussed in the EIR.  No new information has 
emerged that differs from the impact areas discussed in the General Plan 
EIR. 

 
Finally, the General Plan EIR specified a number of feasible mitigation measures to 
address significant effects on the environment that would result in implementing the 
Plan.  To the extent applicable, these mitigation measures are incorporated as part of 
the project or as part of the project’s conditions of approval.   
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve the Muirfield 7 Phase 3 
Tentative Subdivision Map, Application Number TSM11-0001, based on the findings and 
subject to the conditions contained in the Planning Commission Resolution (Attachment 
C) dated April 10, 2013. 

 
MOTION 
 

Move that the Planning Commission approve the Muirfield 7 Phase 3 Tentative 
Subdivision Map, Application Number TSM11-0001, based on the findings and subject to 
the conditions contained in the Planning Commission Resolution (Attachment C) dated 
April 10, 2013. 
 

 
Prepared by Victoria Lombardo, Senior Planner 
 
Reviewed by Bill Dean, Assistant DS Director 
 
Approved by Andrew Malik, DS Director 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

Attachment A—Location Map 
Attachment B—Subdivision Map 
Attachment C—Planning Commission Resolution to approve TSM  

 



µ 0 0.09 0.18 0.27 0.360.045
Miles

Location Map

Co
rra

l H
oll

ow
 R

oa
d

Valpico Road

Starflower Drive

Project Site

Attachment A



barbarah
Typewritten Text
Attachment B



 
RESOLUTION 2 A 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION APPROVING THE 8-LOT MUIRFIELD 7 PHASE 3 

TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP  FOR A 1.2 (NET)-ACRE SITE LOCATED AT THE 
SOUTHERN ENDS OF ALHAMBRA AND GIBSON COURTS 

APPLICATION NUMBER TSM11-0001 
 

 WHEREAS, The subject property was annexed to the City of Tracy in 1997 and 
is an infill parcel, with a General Plan land use designation of Residential Low and 
 
 WHEREAS, The project will create 8 single-family dwelling units, on 1.62 gross 
acres, with an overall density of approximately 4.9 dwelling units per acre, which is 
consistent with the General Plan land use and density requirements, and 
 
 WHEREAS, The proposed map is consistent with the General Plan, and Title 12, 
the Subdivision Ordinance, of the Tracy Municipal Code.  The General Plan designation 
of the property is Residential Low, which provides for a density range of 2.1 to 5.8 
dwelling units per acre.  The General Plan identifies that the characteristic housing for 
the Low Density Residential categories includes single family detached units, as well as 
other housing types, and 

 
WHEREAS, The site is physically suitable for the type of development, as the 

site is virtually flat and the characteristically high clay content of Tracy’s soils may 
require amendments and treatment for proposed landscaping, foundations, and other 
surface and utility work.  The physical qualities of the property make it suitable for 
residential development in accordance with City standards, and 

 
WHEREAS, The site is physically suitable for the proposed density of 

development.  The 4.9 dwelling units per acre proposed is consistent with the allowable 
density range prescribed by the General Plan.  Traffic circulation is designed in 
accordance with City standards for the proposed density to ensure adequate traffic 
service levels are met, and 

 
WHEREAS, The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements will not 

cause substantial environmental damage or substantially and avoidably injure fish or 
wildlife or their habitat.  An Environmental Impact Report was certified for the City’s 
General Plan in 2011.  Significant fish or wildlife or their habitat have not otherwise been 
identified on the site and no further environmental documentation is required, and 

 
WHEREAS, The design of the subdivision or the type of improvements will not 

conflict with easements, acquired by the public at large, for access through or use of, 
property within the proposed subdivision, and 

 
WHEREAS, The project complies with all other applicable ordinances, 

regulations and guidelines of the City, including but not limited to, the local floodplain 
ordinance.  The subject property is not located within any floodplain and the project, with 
conditions, will meet all applicable City design and improvement standards, and 

 
WHEREAS, All the public facilities necessary to serve the subdivision will be in 

place prior to the issuance of building permits.  All the public facilities necessary to serve 



Resolution Number ______ 
The Classics; Application No. 1-06-TSM 
Page 2 

 
 
the subdivision or mitigate the impacts created by the subdivision will be assured 
through a subdivision improvement agreement prior to the approval of a final map, and 
 
 WHEREAS, The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing to review and 
consider the Tentative Subdivision Map on April 10, 2013; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission does 
hereby approve the Muirfield 7 Phase 3 Tentative Subdivision Map, Application Number 
TSM11-0001, subject to conditions stated in Exhibit “1” attached and made part hereof. 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
  
 The foregoing Resolution ________was adopted by the City Council on the 10th 
day of April, 2013, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  COMMISSION MEMBERS: 
NOES:  COMMISSION MEMBERS: 
ABSENT: COMMISSION MEMBERS: 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSION MEMBERS: 
 

                         
______________________ 

          Chair 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________ 
Staff Liaison 
 
  
 

barbarah
Typewritten Text
2A



  Exhibit 1 
 

Conditions of Approval for 
Muirfield 7 Phase 3 Tentative Subdivision Map 

Application Number TSM11-0001 
 
A. These Conditions of Approval shall apply to the real property described as Muirfield 

7 Phase 3 Tentative Subdivision Map, Application Number TSM 11-0001 (hereinafter 
“Project”), generally located on approximately 1.62 gross acres (1.2 net acres) at the 
southern end of Alhambra and Gibson Courts, Assessor’s Parcel Number 242-390-
28. 

 
1.  The following definitions shall apply to these Conditions of Approval: 

 
a. “Applicant” means any person, or other legal entity, defined as a 

“Developer”. 
 

b. “City Engineer” means the City Engineer of the City of Tracy, or any other 
duly licensed engineer designated by the City Manager, or the Public 
Works Director, or the City Engineer to perform the duties set forth 
herein. 

 
c. “City Regulations” means all written laws, rules, and policies established 

by the City, including those set forth in the City of Tracy General Plan, the 
Tracy Municipal Code, ordinances, resolutions, policies, procedures, and 
the City’s Design Documents (including the Standard Plans, Standard 
Specifications, Design Standards, and relevant Public Facility Master 
Plans). 

 
d. “Development Services Director” means the Development Services 

Director of the City of Tracy, or any other person designated by the City 
Manager or the Development Services Director to perform the duties set 
forth herein. 

 
e. “Conditions of Approval” shall mean the conditions of approval applicable 

to the Muirfield 7 Phase 3 Tentative Subdivision Map, Application Number 
TSM11-0001.  The Conditions of Approval shall specifically include all 
Development Services Department Conditions set forth herein. 

 
f.  “Project” means the real property consisting of approximately 1.62 gross 

acres located at the southern end of Alhambra and Gibson Courts, 
Assessor’s Parcel Number 242-390-28. 

 
g. “Subdivider” means any person, or other legal entity, who applies to the 

City to divide or cause to be divided real property within the Project 
boundaries, or who applies to the City to develop or improve any portion 
of the real property within the Project boundaries.  “Subdivider” also 
means the Developer.  The term “Subdivider” shall include all successors 
in interest. 

 



Muirfield 7 Phase 3 Tentative Subdivision Map 
Application No. TSM11-0001  
April 10, 2013 
Page 2 

 
 

2. The Developer shall comply with all laws (federal, state, and local) related to the 
development of real property within the Project, including, but not limited to: the 
Planning and Zoning Law (Government Code sections 65000, et seq.), the 
Subdivision Map Act (Government Code sections 66410, et seq.), the California 
Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code sections 21000, et seq., 
“CEQA”), and the Guidelines for California Environmental Quality Act (California 
Administrative Code, title 14, sections 15000, et seq., “CEQA Guidelines”). 

 
3. Unless specifically modified by these Conditions of Approval, the Developer shall 

comply with all City Regulations, including, but not limited to the Low Density 
Residential Zone district.   

 
4. Unless specifically modified by these Conditions of Approval, the Developer shall 

comply with all mitigation measures identified in the General Plan Environmental 
Impact Report, dated February 11, 2011. 

 
5. Pursuant to Government Code Section 66020, including Section 66020 (d)(1), 

the City HEREBY NOTIFIES the Developer that the 90-day approval period (in 
which the Developer may protest the imposition of any fees, dedications, 
reservations, or other exactions imposed on this Project by these Conditions of 
Approval) has begun on the date of the conditional approval of this Project.  If 
the Developer fails to file a protest within this 90-day period, complying with all of 
the requirements of Government Code Section 66020, the Developer will be 
legally barred from later challenging any such fees, dedications, reservations or 
other exactions. 

 

B. Planning Division Conditions 

 
1. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the developer shall document 

compliance with all applicable school mitigation requirements consistent with City 
Council standards and obtain certificate of compliance from Tracy Unified School 
District for each new residential building permit.  School mitigation requirements 
include payment of all special taxes associated with Community Facilities District 
97-1 and the Sterling Act “school fee”. 

 
2. Prior to the approval of the first Final Map, the Subdivider shall prepare a 

detailed landscape and irrigation plan consistent with City standards, including 
the Water Efficient Landscape Guidelines, to the Satisfaction of the 
Development Services Director. 

 
3. Prior to the recordation of the first Final Map, the Subdivider shall show public 

utility easements necessary to accommodate the needs of local utility providers 
in accordance with City standards, to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

  

C.  Development Services Engineering Division Conditions 
 
Contact: Criseldo Mina  (209) 831-6425  cris.mina@ci.tracy.ca.us 

mailto:cris.mina@ci.tracy.ca.us


Muirfield 7 Phase 3 Tentative Subdivision Map 
Application No. TSM11-0001  
April 10, 2013 
Page 3 

 
 
 

C.1. Tentative Subdivision Map 
Prior to signature of the Tentative Subdivision Map by the City Engineer, the 
Subdivider shall comply with the requirements set forth in this section, to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer.  
 

C.1.1. Submit one (1) reproducible copy of the approved tentative map for the 
Project within ten (10) days after Subdivider’s receipt of notification of 
approval of the tentative map. 

 
C.2. Final Map  

No final map within the Project boundaries will be approved by the City until the 
Subdivider demonstrates, to the satisfaction of the City Engineer, compliance 
with all required Conditions of Approval, including, but not limited to, the 
following: 
 
C.2.1. The Subdivider has completed all the requirements set forth in this 

section, and Condition C.1., above. 
   

C.2.2. The Subdivider has obtained the approval of all other public agencies 
with jurisdiction over the required public facilities. 

 
C.2.3. The Final Map shall include dedications or offers of dedication of all 

rights-of-way and easements required to serve the Project described by 
the Final Map, in accordance with City Regulations and these 
Conditions of Approval. 

 
C.2.4. Horizontal and vertical control for the Project shall be based upon the 

City of Tracy coordinate system and at least three 2nd order Class 1 
control points establishing the "Basis of Bearing" and shown as such 
on the final map.  The final map shall also identify surveyed ties from 
two of the control points to a minimum of two separate points adjacent 
to or within the property described by the Final Map. 

 
C.2.5. Payment of all fees required by these Conditions of Approval and City 

Regulations.  
 

C.3. Improvement Plans 
The Improvement Plans that are required in this section are the marked up 
improvement plans of the previously approved improvement plans for Muirfield 
7, Phase 2, Tract 2974, which shows streets and utilities improvements that 
are yet to be installed behind the curb and sidewalk and in front of the eight (8) 
residential lots. Prior to obtaining the City Engineer’s signature on the 
Improvement Plans, all the requirements set forth in this section shall be 
completed, to the satisfaction of the City Engineer, including but not limited to, 
the following: 

 



Muirfield 7 Phase 3 Tentative Subdivision Map 
Application No. TSM11-0001  
April 10, 2013 
Page 4 

 
 

C.3.1. The Subdivider has completed all the requirements set forth in this 
section, and Conditions C.1., and C.2., above. 

 
C.3.2.  Improvement Plans to be signed by the City Engineer must be provided 

on a 4-mil thick 24” x 36” size polyester film (mylar) and prepared under 
the supervision of, and stamped and signed by a Registered Civil 
Engineer.    

  
C.3.3. Sanitary Sewer - The Subdivider shall design and install sewer 

connection for this Project in accordance with City Regulations.  The 
Subdivider is hereby notified that the City will not provide maintenance 
of the sewer lateral within the public right-of-way unless the sewer 
cleanout is located and constructed in conformance with Standard Plan 
No. 203. The City’s responsibility to maintain on the sewer lateral is 
from the wye fitting to the point of connection with the sewer main. 

 
C.3.4. Domestic and Fire Service Water - Domestic water service shall be 

installed in accordance with City Regulations and at the location 
approved by the City Engineer. City’s responsibility to maintain water 
lines shall be from the water main on the street to the back of the water 
meter (inclusive) only.  Repair and maintenance of all on-site water 
lines, laterals, sub-meters, valves, fittings, fire hydrant and 
appurtenances shall be the responsibility of the Subdivider. 

 
C.3.5. The Improvement Plans shall contain the Tracy’s Fire Marshall’s 

signature indicating their approval on the Project’s fire service 
connection, fire and emergency vehicle access to the Project, and 
compliance of the City’s Fire Department fire protection requirements.  
Written approval from the Fire Department required in this section shall 
be obtained by the Subdivider, prior to City Engineer’s signature on the 
Improvement Plans. 

 
 

C.4. Grading Permit 
No application for grading permit and encroachment permit within the Project 
boundaries will be accepted by the City as complete until the Subdivider 
provides all documents required by City Regulations and these Conditions of 
Approval, to the satisfaction of the City Engineer, including but not limited to, 
the following: 
 
C.4.1. The Subdivider has completed all the requirements set forth in this 

section and Conditions C.1., and C.2., above. 
 
C.4.2. A Grading and Storm Drainage Plan prepared by a Registered Civil 

Engineer as required in Condition C.3., and accompanied by Soils 
Engineering and Engineering Geology reports shall be submitted to 
the City with the Improvement Plans.  The reports shall provide 



Muirfield 7 Phase 3 Tentative Subdivision Map 
Application No. TSM11-0001  
April 10, 2013 
Page 5 

 
 

recommendations regarding adequacy of sites to be developed by the 
proposed grading and also information relative to the stability of soils.  
Slope easements, if necessary, shall be recorded per City 
Regulations.  Prior to the issuance of the first building permit within the 
Property, the Subdivider shall submit a letter, signed and stamped by a 
Registered Geo-technical Engineer, certifying that grading work, 
including excavation, backfilling, compacting and backfilling work 
performed by the Subdivider, meets the requirements of the Project’s 
Soils Report and was completed under the supervision of the Project’s 
Geo-technical Engineer (licensed to practice in the State of California). 

 
C.4.3. All grading shall require a Grading Permit.  Erosion control measures 

shall be implemented in accordance with plans approved by the City 
Engineer for all grading work not completed before the 15

th
 of October 

of that year.  Improvement Plans shall designate all erosion control 
methods and materials to be employed. 

 
C.4.4. Prior to the issuance of the Grading Permit, the Subdivider shall 

submit three (3) sets of the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plans 
(SWPPP) and a copy of the Notice of Intent (NOI) submitted to the 
State Water Quality Control Board (SWQCB) and any documentation 
or written approvals from the SWQCB, including the Wastewater 
Discharge Identification Number (WDID#). After the completion of the 
Project, the Subdivider is responsible for filing the Notice of 
Termination (NOT) required by SWQCB.  The Subdivider shall provide 
the City, a copy of the completed Notice of Termination.  Cost of 
preparing the SWPPP, NOI and NOT including the filing fee of the NOI 
and NOT shall be paid by the Subdivider. The Subdivider shall provide 
the City with the WDID#, prior to the issuance of the Grading Permit.  
The Subdivider shall comply with all the requirements of the SWPPP 
and applicable Best Management Practices (BMPs), City’s Storm 
Water Regulations, and the City’s Storm Water Management Program. 

 
C.4.6. All existing on-site wells shall be abandoned in accordance with the 

City and San Joaquin County requirements.  All costs associated with 
the abandonment of existing wells including the cost of permits, if 
required, shall be the responsibility of the Subdivider.  The Subdivider 
shall provide the City documentation or copy of permit issued by the 
San Joaquin County, approving the removal or destruction of existing 
well(s), if applicable, prior to the issuance of the Grading Permit. 

 
C.5. Encroachment Permit 

No application for encroachment permit within the Project boundaries will be 
accepted by the City as complete until the Subdivider provides all documents 
required by City Regulations and these Conditions of Approval, to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer, including but not limited to, the following: 
 



Muirfield 7 Phase 3 Tentative Subdivision Map 
Application No. TSM11-0001  
April 10, 2013 
Page 6 

 
 

C.5.1. The Subdivider has completed all requirements set forth in this section 
and Conditions C.1., C.2., C.3., and C.4., above. 

 
C.5.2. A construction cost estimate for all required public improvements or 

facilities, prepared in accordance with City Regulations.  Total 
construction cost shall include fifteen percent (15%) construction 
contingencies. Engineering review fees are calculated based on the 
approved Engineer’s Estimate. 

 
C.5.3. Payment of all applicable processing fees, including improvement plan 

check fees, engineering fees for processing Conditions of Approval, 
encroachment and grading permits and inspection fees, and other fees 
as required by these Conditions of Approval and City Regulations. 

 
 
C.6. Building Permit 

No building permit within the Project boundaries will be approved by the City 
until the Subdivider demonstrates, to the satisfaction of the City Engineer, 
compliance with all required Conditions of Approval, including, but not limited 
to, the following: 
 
C.6.1. The Subdivider has completed all requirements set forth in this 

section, and Conditions C.1., C.2., C.3., C.4., and C.5., above. 
 
C.6.2. Payment of all applicable development impact fees (a.k.a. capital in-

lieu fees), San Joaquin County Facilities Fees, Regional 
Transportation Impact Fees, School Mitigation Fees, and all fees 
required by these Conditions of Approval and City Regulations. 
Development impact fees are adjusted annually based on the 
Construction Cost Index (CCI) published in the Engineering News 
Record (ENR). The final development impact fees to be paid by the 
Subdivider are the development impact fees that are in effect at the 
time of issuance of the building permit.  

 
 The Subdivider agreed that no building permit applications will be 

accepted and processed until the City approves the development 
impact fees applicable for this Project. 

 
C.6.3. A letter signed and stamped by the Project’s Geo-Technical Engineer 

certifying that all grading work that were performed by the Subdivider 
within the Project meets the requirements of the Project’s Geo-
technical/Soils Report and the recommendations of the Project’s Geo-
Technical Engineer, and that the grading work was performed under 
the direct supervision of the Project’s Geo-technical Engineer, as 
required in Condition C.4.2., above. 

  
C.7. Final Building Inspection 



Muirfield 7 Phase 3 Tentative Subdivision Map 
Application No. TSM11-0001  
April 10, 2013 
Page 7 

 
 

The City shall not conduct a final building inspection on any building within the 
Project boundaries until the Subdivider provides documentation which 
demonstrates, to the satisfaction of the City Engineer, that: 
 
C.7.1. The Subdivider has completed all requirements set forth in this 

section, and Conditions C.1., C.2., C.3., C.4., C.5., and C.6., above. 
 
C.7.2. The Subdivider has completed construction of public facilities or 

improvements required to serve the Project for which a building 
certificate of occupancy is requested.  Unless specifically provided in 
these Conditions of Approval or other City Regulations, the Subdivider 
shall take all actions necessary to construct all public facilities required 
to serve the Project, and the Subdivider shall bear all costs related to 
the construction of the public facilities (including all costs of design, 
construction, construction management, improvement plans check, 
inspection, land acquisition, program implementation, and 
contingency). 

 



April 10, 2013 
 

AGENDA ITEM 2 B 
 
REQUEST 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION STUDY SESSION REGARDING THE DRAFT CORDES RANCH 
SPECIFIC PLAN  

 
DISCUSSION 
  

The purpose of this Planning Commission study session is to discuss the Draft Cordes Ranch 
Specific Plan.  The primary focus of the study session will be on Chapter 3: Land Use, Zoning, 
and Development Standards, and Chapter 4: Design Guidelines.   
 
The Cordes Ranch project has been the subject of previous Planning Commission meetings, 
including a presentation, discussion, and public input during the initial environmental review 
process (Notice of Preparation of an Environmental Impact Report) on December 21, 2012.  
City Council has reviewed the project on several occasions, including November 7, 2012, 
August 7, 2012, and October 18, 2011, to discuss the I-205 corridor.  The outcome of these 
discussions and direction from City Council has been included in the Draft Specific Plan. 
 
The projected schedule for Planning Commission consideration of this project is June of 2013.  
It is likely that a Planning Commission hearing will be scheduled to receive comments on the 
Environmental Impact Report for April 24th, which will be separately noticed.  This study 
session is an opportunity to further discuss the project and contents of the Draft Specific Plan.  
Chapters 1, 2, 3, and 4 of the Draft Specific Plan are attached for the purpose of discussion 
(Attachment A).  This agenda item requires no other action than discussion. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

That Planning Commission conducts a study session regarding the Draft Cordes Ranch 
Specific Plan and provides comments to staff.      
 

Prepared by: Scott Claar, Associate Planner 
 
Reviewed by:  Bill Dean, Assistant Development Services Assistant Director 
 
Approved by: Andrew Malik, Development Services Director 
 
 
ATTACHMENT 
 
 A:  Chapters 1, 2, 3, and 4 of the Draft Cordes Ranch Specific Plan 
 
   








































































































































